
 

 

 
 

RIVERDALE CITY PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 

AMENDED 
CIVIC CENTER - 4600 S. WEBER RIVER DR.  

TUESDAY – JUNE 25, 2013 
 

6:00 p.m. –Work Session (City Council Conference Room)  
The purpose of the work session is to review maps, plans, paperwork, etc.  No motions or 
decisions will be considered during this session, which is open to the public. 
 
6:30 p.m. – Planning Commission Meeting (Council Chambers) 

A. Welcome & Roll Call  

B. Open Communications 
(This is an opportunity to address the Planning Commission regarding your 
concerns or ideas.  Please try to limit your comments to three minutes.) 

C. Presentations and Reports 
 1. Community Development Projects Status Report   

D. Consent Items 
 1.  Consideration of meeting minutes from:  

 June 11, 2013 Work Session 
   June 11, 2013 Planning Commission   
 
E. Action Items  
  1.  Request review and approval of a Conditional Use Permit for an 

Electronic Cigarette Shop Vapor-Mania proposed at 1071 W. Riverdale 
Road Ste. 72 in a C-3 zone.                                    

    Presenters: Randy Daily, Community Development Director  
               Michael Eggett, Community Development Director 
 

2. Consideration of Conditional Use Permit Application for Hokulia Shave Ice      
   Petitioners: Brenton King & Mark Scott 
 
 
F.  Discretionary Items 

G.   Adjournment 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• The public is invited to attend all Planning Commission meetings. 
• In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons in need of special 

accommodation should contact the City Recorder at 394-5541 x 1232. 
• This agenda has been properly posted and a copy provided to local news media. 



RIVERDALE CITY 
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 

June 25, 2013 
 

AGENDA ITEM: B 
 
SUBJECT: Open Communications 
 
PETITIONER: Anyone Interested 
 
ACTION REQUESTED BY PETITIONER: Open agenda item provided for any 

interested person to be able to speak 
about any topic. 

 
INFORMATION: Per Governing Body desire, this item will be placed on the agenda 

as a permanent and regular item. 
 

BACK TO AGENDA 
 



RIVERDALE CITY 
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA  

June 25, 2013 
 

AGENDA ITEM: C 
 
SUBJECT: Community Development Projects Status Report  

ACTION REQUESTED BY PETITIONER: Information only.   

INFORMATION: Opportunity for the Community Development Director to present 
any updates or information on follow-up issues to the Planning 
Commission. 

 
 Community Development Report 

 
 

BACK TO AGENDA 
 



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS STATUS REPORT 
 

June 7, 2013 

In-N-Out Burger has broken ground and started 
construction of their new restaurant located at 4040 
S. Riverdale Road. They hope to open by the end 
of August. 

EZ Pawn will open a store in the strip mall 
in front of Shopko at 4068 S. Riverdale 
Road. 

Subway is in the process of opening a new lo-
cation at 1078 W. Riverdale Road. They are 
currently remodeling the space. 

Intermountain Healthcare is planning to open 
a billing office in the Brookheaven office 
building at 4933 South 1500 west. 

Gentiva home Health is planning to open an 
office in the Brookheaven office building at 
4933 South 1500 west. 

Hokulia Shave Ice is opening a drive up location at 
1135 W. Riverdale Road (Applebees parking lot). 



RIVERDALE CITY 
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA  

June 25, 2013 
 

AGENDA ITEM: D 
 
 
SUBJECT: Consideration of meeting minutes from:  

 June 11, 2013 Work Session 
   June 11, 2013 Planning Commission   

 
PETITIONER: City Recorder 
 
ACTION REQUESTED BY PETITIONER: Approve minutes 
 
INFORMATION: See attached minutes as follows:   

 

  June 11, 2013 Work Session 
 
 

    June 11, 2013 Planning Commission   
 

 

BACK TO AGENDA 
 
 



 

 

Administrative Offices 
4600 So. Weber River Drive 

Riverdale, Utah  84405 

 
 
Minutes of the Work Session of the Riverdale City Planning Commission held 
Tuesday, June 11, 2013 at 6:03 p.m. at the Riverdale Civic Center, 4600 South Weber 
River Drive. 
 
Members Present:       Brent Ellis, Chairman  

Michael Roubinet, Commissioner 
Kathy Eskelsen, Commissioner 
Steve Hilton, Commissioner 
Lori Fleming, Commissioner 

 
Members Excused: David Gailey, Commissioner  

Blair Jones, Vice-Chairman 
 
Others Present: Randy Daily, Community Development Director; Michael Eggett, 

Community Development Director; Ember Herrick, City Recorder 
and two members of the public Jared Johnson and Rob Saunders.   

 
Chairman Ellis welcomed the Planning Commission members to the work session stating 
for the record that all were in attendance except for Commissioners Gailey and Jones who 
are excused.  Community Development Director Michael Eggett said Jared Johnson with 
Yesco is expected shortly to give the Planning Commission a report on electronic signs to 
help them make an informed decision before considering any proposed amendments to 
Riverdale’s electronic sign ordinance.   
 
Mr. Eggett referred to the Community Development Report and said In-N-Out Burger is 
on schedule to open at the end of July or early August, Subway’s second store location 
remodeling is still ongoing along with EZ Pawn, IHC and Gentiva.  He said Hokulia has 
permission to operate their shaved ice temporary business in the parking lot near 
Applebee’s restaurant but he isn’t aware of whether or not they have opened for business 
yet.  Mr. Eggett said Batteries Plus is looking at a storefront by Men’s Warehouse and a 
separate business called Batteries and Bulbs is looking at a location near Bed Bath and 
Beyond.  Chairman Ellis said it is good to see new businesses occupying office space in 
the Brook Haven development and Mr. Eggett said the City Council amended Riverdale’s 
Developer’s Agreement with Brook Haven to allow additional signage at their June 4, 
2013 meeting.   
 
Yesco Representative Jared Johnson joined the work session in progress.   
 
Mr. Eggett introduced Mr. Johnson who displayed a piece of an electronic sign and 
explained to the Planning Commission how the signs work and the difference between on 
and off premise signs.  Mr. Johnson said billboard signs provide advertising space for 
multiple advertisers on a monthly rental basis in high traffic areas.  He reviewed the 



 

 

history of billboards and said digital displays allow for lower maintenance and are more 
economically viable because they can updated remotely using computers and can be 
monitored 24 hours a day seven days a week with cameras to ensure they are operating 
correctly.  Mr. Johnson said since the 1960’s all billboards have been standardized and 
state regulated and their numbers have been reduced from 1 million to 400,000 across 47 
states.  He said billboards are allowed in commercial and industrial areas in Utah and 
currently there is a virtual moratorium on any new billboards in cities throughout the 
state.  Community Development Director Randy Daily said Riverdale City has a ban in 
place prohibiting any new billboards in the city.   Mr. Johnson said not all existing signs 
are viable for conversion to electronic billboards and he circulated images of a sign in 
Ogden on 31st Street which he said has made it possible for 44 local advertisers to get 
their message out to consumers since it was installed in 2009.   
 
Rob Saunders with Saunders Advertising joined the meeting in progress.   
 
Mr. Johnson said it costs approximately $250,000 to convert a standard billboard to an 
electronic sign and companies must employ staff to monitor and repair electronic signs 
that have unique expertise so the cost is very prohibitive.  He said sign companies are in 
favor of having cities like Riverdale incorporate into their ordinances industry standards 
for brightness and design.   
 
Mr. Daily suggested the Planning Commission suspend their work session discussion 
about electronic signs to be continued during tonight’s public meeting in consideration of 
time constraints.   
 
Chairman Ellis asked for any meeting minute corrections or changes and none were 
noted.   
 
Chairman Ellis said the first action item on the agenda is a public hearing to receive and 
consider public comment on proposed amendments to the General Plan.  Mr. Eggett said 
this is part of the Community Development Department’s ongoing effort to update 
Riverdale’s General Plan.  He said all of the departments with sections of the plan being 
updated including Public Works, the Senior Center, Community Center and 
Administration have reviewed the proposed changes and submitted their changes and 
recommendations prior to tonight’s public hearing.  Chairman Ellis asked if any public 
feedback either in support of or opposition to the proposed changes had been received by 
staff prior to tonight’s public meeting and Mr. Eggett said none have been received to 
date.   

Chairman Ellis suggested the landmark designation be removed from the Implementation 
Section of the General Plan under the section describing recommendations for future 
development to the West Bench RDA Project Area. 

Mr. Daily said that land was primarily zoned landmark under the original owner Don Farr 
but the designation was changed to C-3 when Rob Reynolds purchased the property to 
facilitate the development because the landmark designation was determined to be too 
restrictive.  Mr. Eggett said landmark zoning is cumbersome and he suggested that 
designation be eliminated altogether from Riverdale’s zoning map at a future meeting.  



 

 

Chairman Ellis said no property on the West Bench currently has landmark designation 
and so he recommended that language be deleted from the Implementation Section of 
Riverdale’s General Plan to reflect the current zoning in the area.  There were no 
objections from the other members of the Planning Commission to the proposed 
amendment and so the City Recorder noted the change.   

There were no additional comments or questions and there being no further business, the 
Planning Commission adjourned at 6:28 p.m. to convene into their regular session. 
 
Approved:  June 25, 2013           Attest:  
 
 
 
________________________             ________________________ 
Brent Ellis, Chairman                         Ember Herrick, City Recorder  



 

 
 
Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Riverdale City Planning Commission held Tuesday, 
June 11, 2013 at 6:30 p.m. at the Riverdale Civic Center, 4600 South Weber River Drive. 
 
Members Present:       Brent Ellis, Chairman  

Kathy Eskelsen, Commissioner 
Steve Hilton, Commissioner 
Lori Fleming, Commissioner 
Michael Roubinet, Commissioner 
 

Member Excused: David Gailey, Commissioner  
Blair Jones, Vice-Chairman 

 
Others Present:  Michael Eggett, Community Development Director; Ember Herrick, City 
Recorder and two members of the public Jared Johnson and Rob Saunders.   
 
A.   Welcome & Roll Call  
Chairman Ellis welcomed everyone to the meeting and stated for the record all members of the 
Planning Commission are present except for Commissioners Gailey and Jones who are excused.   
 
B.   Open Communications  
Chairman Ellis invited any member of the public with questions or concerns to address the 
Planning Commission and there were none.   
 
C.   Presentations and Reports  
Community Development Projects Status Report  
Community Development Director Michael Eggett said six different businesses are currently in 
different phases of development in Riverdale City as discussed in the work session.  He asked for 
any questions or comments and there were none.   
 
Report on Electronic Billboards 
Chairman Ellis welcomed Jared Johnson with Yesco and Rob Saunders with Saunders 
Advertising to the meeting and said they will be continuing their presentation on electronic 
billboards from the work session.  Mr. Johnson said there are brightness standards for electronic 
billboards incorporated into nationwide guidelines for on and off premise signs.  He said the 
technology is the same for all electronic billboards and the goal of advertisers is to create signs 
that communicate well and operate in accordance with universal safety standards.  Mr. Johnson 
said three companies Yesco, Saunders and Reagan own outdoor advertising in Riverdale and he 
encouraged the Planning Commission to review industry standards for brightness and motion to 
apply to any future ordinance the city adopts for outdoor advertising.  He said Utah sign 
companies have cameras on all of their electronic signs 24 hours a day seven days a week to 
identify any malfunctions, and ensure that the signs are compliant with state and federal 
regulations and can be utilized for emergency messages like Amber Alerts for missing children.  
Mr. Johnson said Yesco, which operates out of Logan Utah, builds the components of electronic 
billboards and troubleshoots all their customer signs to ensure that they are automatically 
dimming with the natural light from the sun and are not flashing as they switch on an eight 
second rotation.  Mr. Eggett asked about generational marketing and Mr. Johnson said certain 



 

Riverdale City Planning Commission                                                   2                                                                                   June 11, 2013  

demographics specifically the younger generation respond to digital media and he claimed that 
electronic signs have been studied and experts have determined them to be safety neutral.   

Mr. Saunders said his company has been in the outdoor advertising business for 57 years in Utah 
and has only converted three of their 500 billboards to electronic signs.  He said demand for 
electronic advertising is low at this time but he said he sees the signs as a sustainable way to 
allow more businesses to advertise without the construction of new billboards. 

Commissioner Fleming asked about the differences in the cost of traditional and electronic 
advertising and Mr. Saunders said previously one business would contract to advertise on a 
billboard for one to three years at a relatively high cost with limited ability to change their 
advertisements.   Mr. Saunders said electronic billboards allow multiple businesses to share one 
advertising space at a lower cost so that smaller businesses can afford to advertise.  He said 
electronic billboards are updated via a computer and so they provide their customers the 
versatility of 10 layouts per year or the ability to advertise for shorter periods like just a month.  
Commissioner Hilton asked if the cost of this technology is expected to decrease over time until 
all billboards are converted to electronic signs and Mr. Saunders said these signs are only 
effective in certain locations and the technology has been around for 10 years but sign 
conversion has been slow.  Mr. Johnson said the price is tied to the cost of LED diodes and has 
remained constant over the last two years and the improvements that are being made to the 
technology are in how the signs report back to the monitoring facility when they are 
malfunctioning.  Commissioner Hilton said he would not be in favor of Riverdale City banning 
electronic signs but he does feel that this new technology needs to be regulated for brightness 
and change rate to ensure that electronic signs comply with industry standards and do not 
negatively impact residential zones.  Mr. Johnson said he would like to work together with 
Riverdale City to create reasonable regulations that allow the introduction of new sign 
technology.  Mr. Saunders said he only anticipates one of his billboards in Riverdale ever 
converting to a digital signs and he said he would like the ability to choose which of his signs 
goes electronic.  He said Layton City went through a long process to make regulations for 
electronic billboards and hasn’t had a single sign convert since the new rules were put in place a 
year ago.   

Mr. Eggett asked how the sign companies would feel about being required to reduce the size of 
their billboards before converting them to electronic signs and Mr. Johnson said this would be 
very burdensome for sign companies as billboards have been standardized to bulletin and poster 
size signs.  He said Yesco currently has one poster sized sign in Riverdale and the rest are 
bulletin sized and he said his company would be opposed to modifying their existing signs to 
conform to new Riverdale size restrictions for electronic signs.  Mr. Saunders said billboards 
must be bulletin size to be visible and comprehendible to freeway traffic.   

Commissioner Hilton asked what fines other cities have incorporated into their ordinances for 
electronic sign violations and Mr. Johnson said the City of Cottonwood Heights requires the sign 
owner to reimburse the city if the city has an electronic sign tested for brightness and finds that it 
doesn’t comply with the established standards.  Mr. Johnson said Yesco would prefer if cities 
contacted the sign companies directly when they suspect a problem so that the signs can be tested 
and repaired without the necessity to bring is a third party to test electronic signs.  He said Utah 
sign companies have established a reporting agency to get electronic sign complaints resolved 
and corrected expeditiously.  Councilor Roubinet asked about brightness standard for electronic 
signs and Mr. Johnson said the amount of light is calculated in relation to the ambient light and 
signs are programmed to dim automatically with a mechanically failsafe programmed in to 



 

Riverdale City Planning Commission                                                   3                                                                                   June 11, 2013  

observe the naval observatory’s sunrise and sunset schedule.  Mr. Johnson said electronic signs 
are monitored regularly at an operations center and the latest technology allows newer signs to 
report problems via email.  He asked for any additional questions or comments and there were 
none.  Chairman Ellis thanked Mr. Johnson and Mr. Saunders for taking the time to educate the 
Planning Commission about electronic signs and he said Riverdale City staff will notify them 
about any future public hearings to consider proposed new sign regulations.   

D.   Consent Items  
May 28, 2013 Work Session 
May 28, 2013 Planning Commission   
Chairman Ellis asked for any changes or corrections to the previous meeting minutes and none 
were noted.   

  Motion: Commissioner Roubinet moved to approve the consent items.  Commissioner 
Eskelsen seconded the motion.    

 
There was no discussion on the motion.   

Call the Question: The motion passed unanimously. 

E. Action Items 
 1.       a.  Public hearing to receive and consider public comment on proposed  
     amendments to the Economy, Transportation, Public Facilities and  
     Infrastructure, Parks and Recreation and Implementation sections of  
     the General Plan  
 
   b. Consideration of recommendation on Resolution 2013-26 adopting  
    proposed amendments to the Economy, Transportation, Public  
    Facilities and Infrastructure, Parks and Recreation and  
    Implementation sections of the General Plan  
 
Chairman Ellis opened the public hearing and no one came forward to comment on the proposed 
changes to the General Plan.  Community Development Director Michael Eggett said no public 
comment was received either in favor of or opposition to the proposed changes prior to tonight’s 
meeting.   
 

Motion: Commissioner Fleming moved to close the public hearing.  Commissioner 
Eskelsen seconded the motion.    

 
There was no discussion on the motion.   

 
 Call the Question: The motion passed unanimously.   

Mr. Eggett said staff including Public Works, Community Development, Community Services 
and Senior Services have all reviewed sections of the General Plan pertaining to their 
departments and their suggested changes and recommendations have been incorporated into the 
draft included in the packet for tonight’s discussion.  He said during the work session Chairman 
Ellis recommended the reference to “landmark designation” be removed from the 
Implementation Section of the General Plan in connection with the West Bench Project Area. 



 

Riverdale City Planning Commission                                                   4                                                                                   June 11, 2013  

Mr. Eggett asked for any additional amendments, questions or comments on these sections of the 
General Plan and Chairman Ellis thanked staff for their work on these updates.   

  Motion: Commissioner Hilton moved to forward with a favorable recommendation to 
the City Council proposed amendments to the Economy, Transportation, 
Public Facilities and Infrastructure, Parks and Recreation and Implementation 
sections of the General Plan.  Commissioner Roubinet seconded the motion.    

 
There was no discussion on the motion.   
 
 Call the Question: The motion passed unanimously.   

F.   Discretionary Items 
Chairman Ellis thanked the City Recorder for her letter to the editor in support of vote by mail, 
he asked for any discretionary items and there were none.     
 
Motion: There being no further business to come before the Planning Commission, 

Commissioner Eskelsen moved to adjourn the meeting.  Commissioner Roubinet 
seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously.  The meeting adjourned at 
7:06 p.m.   

 
Approved:  June 25, 2013           Attest:  
 
 
 
________________________________                                      __________________________  
Brent Ellis, Chairman                                   Ember Herrick, City Recorder  
 
 



RIVERDALE CITY 
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA  

June 25, 2013 
 

AGENDA ITEM: E1 
 
SUBJECT: Request review and approval of a Conditional Use Permit for an 

Electronic Cigarette Shop Vapor-Mania proposed at 1071 W. Riverdale 
Road Ste. 72 in a C-3 zone.                                    

 
PETITIONER: Vapor-Mania        

 
ACTION REQUESTED BY PETITIONER: Request review and approval of a 

Conditional Use Permit for an 
Electronic Cigarette Shop Vapor-
Mania proposed at 1071 W. 
Riverdale Road Ste. 72 in a C-3 
zone.                                    

 
 
INFORMATION: Executive Summary  

 Conditional Use Permit Application and Receipt    

 Map  

 Business License Application    

  
BACK TO AGENDA 

 



















RIVERDALE CITY 
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA  

June 25, 2013 
 

AGENDA ITEM: E2 
 
SUBJECT: Consideration of amended Conditional Use Permit Application for 

Hokulia Shave Ice 
 
PETITIONER: Brenton King & Mark Scott, owner/operator        

 
ACTION REQUESTED BY PETITIONER: Consideration of amended 

Conditional Use Permit Application 
for Hokulia Shave Ice 

 
 
 
INFORMATION: Executive Summary  

 Letter from DDR 

  Site Plan  
 

 Conditional Use Permit Application and receipt  

 Business License Application  

  
 

BACK TO AGENDA 
 











































RIVERDALE CITY  
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 

June 25, 2013 
 

AGENDA ITEM: F1 
 
SUBJECT: Discretionary Items 
  
PETITIONER: Elected, Appointed, and Staff 
 
ACTION REQUESTED BY PETITIONER: Open agenda item provided for 

comments or discussion on 
discretionary items. 

 
 

BACK TO AGENDA 
 
 
 


